INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT

To the Members of

Phiroze Sethna Private Limited

1.  Opinion

We have audited the accompanying standalone financial statements of Phlroze Sethna
Private Limited (“the Company”), which comprises the Balance Sheet as‘at March 31,

2023, the Statement of Profit and Loss (including Other Comprehenswe Inceme)

Statement of Changes in equity and the Cash Flow Statement for the" year then ended,

and notes to the financial statements, including a summary of the, sngn cant accounting
policies and other explanatory information. :

to us, the aforesaid financial statements give the mformatlon requnred by the Companies
Act, 2013 (“the Act’) in the manner so required and give arfrue and fair view in
conformity with the Indlan Accounting Standards preScrlbed runder Sectlon 133 of the

attairs o’r the bompany as at March .51 AUZJ, Its L.oss, total comprehenslve Income,
Changes in equity and its Cash Flows for the yé‘ar ended on that date.

2. Basis fur Opinion

We conducted our audit in, accordance"wnh the Standards on Auditing (SAs) specified
under section 143(10) of the Eompanies Act, 2013. Our responsibilities under those
Standards are further described;in the Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit of the
standalone Financial,, Staternents section of our report We are mdependent of the

...........

of the stand_alone f_gnancial statements under the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013
and the Rules thereunder, and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in
accordance ‘w‘i:thﬁz,these requirements and the Code of Ethics. We believe that the audit
evidenice We*have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our
oplmon on the Standalone Financial Results.

3. Nian_agement's Responsibility for the Financial Statements

The Company's Board of Directors is responsible for the matters stated in Section
134(5) of the Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act") with respect to the preparation of these
financial statements to give a true and fair view of the financial position, financial
performance, changes in equity and cash flows of the Company in accordance with the
accounting principles generally accepted in India, including the Accounting Standards
specified under Section 133 of the Act, read with Rule 7 of the Companies (Accounts)
Rules, 2014. This responsibility also includes maintenance of adequate accounting




records in accordance with the provisions of the Act for safeguarding the assets of the
Company and for preventing and detecting frauds and other irregularities; selection and
appllcation ul appropiiale assounting policies; making Judgments and estimates that are
reasonable and prudent; and design, implementation and maintenance of adequate
internal financial controls, that were aperating effentively for ensuring the acauracy and
completeness of the accounting records, relevant to the preparation and presentation of
the financial statements that give a true and fair view and are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the financial statements, management is responsible for asseeamg the
Company’s ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as appllcabte matters
related to going concern and using the going concern basis of accopntlng unless
management either intends to liquidate the Company or to cease op’eratlons or has no

realistic alternative but to do so.

Thoac Board of Dircctore are aleo reeponsible for overseel g the company 's financial
reporting process. /

Auditor's Responsibility for the audit of the Fmancial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable, assurance= about whether the financial
statements as a whole are free from material, mlsstatement whether due to fraud or
error, and to issue an auditor’s report that. mcludes our opinion. Reasonable assurance
is a high IeveI of assurance, but IS not’a guarantee that an audit conducted in

or in the aggregate, they could;reasenably be expected to influence the economic
decisions of users taken on” the, baSIS of these financial statements.

As part of an audit in accozdance with SAs, we exercise professional judgment and
maintain profe35|onal"7skept10|sm throughout the audit. We also:

e |dentify and a$$ess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements,
whether due to“fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures respansive tn
those risks “and obtain audil evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a
basis for. OUI“ bplnlon The risk of not detecting a matenial misstatement resulting from

fraud,js higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion,
¥ forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.

o Obtam an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design
g;audlt procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances. Under section 143(3)(|) of
‘thc Companics Act, 2013, we are alsu responsible for expressing our opinion on
whether the company has adequate internal financial controls system in place and
the operating effectiveness of such controls.

« Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting palicies used and the reasanahlenass nf
accounting estimatcs and related disclosures made by management.
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¢ Conclude on the appropriateness of management'’s use of the going concern basis of
accounting and, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material
uncertainty exists related to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on
the Company’s ability to continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a material
uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditor's report to the
related disclosures in the financial statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate,
to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up
to the date of our auditor's report. However, future events or conditions may cause
the Company to cease to continue as a going concern. %

o Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the fi nancral statements
including the disclosures, and whether the financial statements represent the

underlying transactions and events in a manner that achieves falr pre: ntatton

Materiality is the magnltude of misstatements in the standalone lnanc;al statements
that, individually or in aggregate, makes it probable that the*-‘economlc decisions of a
reasonably knowledgeable user of the standalone flnanotarf statements may be
influenced. We consider quantltatlve materiality and quahtatwe {aotors in (i) planning the
scope of our audit work and in evaluating the results of our work "and (i) to evaluate the
effect of any identified misstatements in the standatone‘ nc:al statements.

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters,
the planned scope and timing of the audit. and signific icant audit findings, including any
significant deficiencies in internal control fhat we 1aent1fy during our audit.

complied with relevant ethical reqorrements regarding independence, and to
communicate with them allfreiatlonshlps and other matters that may reasonably be
thought to bear on Our mdependence “and where applicable, related safeguards.

We also provide those charged. W|th governance with a statement that we have

Report on Other Lega 'and Regulatory Requirements

A) As requwed by thé: Companles (Audltors Report) Order, 2020 ("the Order"), issued
by the Qentra! “Government of India in terms of sub-section (11) of section 143 of
the Act wezgive in the "Annexure A" a statement on the matters specified in
paragraphs 3and 4 of the Order.

"'5':': a.: We have sought and obtained all the information and explanations which to the
.7~ best of our knowledge and belief were necessary for the purpose of our audit.

b. In our opinion proper books of account as required by law have been kept by
the Company so far as it appears from our examination of those books.

c. The Balance Sheet, the Statement of Profit and Loss including Other
Comprehensive Income, Statement of Changes in Equity and the Cash Flow
Statement dealt with by this Report are in agreement with the books of
accounts.




A

In our opinion, the aforesaid financial statements comply with the Indian
Accounting Standards (IND AS) specified under section 133 of the Act.

On the basls of written representations recelved ftoin the Direclurs as v Maich
31, 2023 and taken on record by the Board of Directors, none of the directors is
disqualified as on March 31, 2023 from being appointed as a director in terms of
Section 164(2) of the Act.

l

reparting of the Company and the aperating effechveness of suchy r‘enfreie' Tefer
to our separate Report in "Annexure B". Our report expresses an unmedlf ed

financial controls with reference to Standalone FlnanC|aI Stat'ements

The Company being a Private Limited company an’d hence’the provisions of
Section 197 of the Companies Act, 2013 are not apphcable to the Company.
Accordingly, we are not requwed to and have, ot reporteg other matters to be
included in the Auditor’'s report in accordance W|th the requirements of section
197(16) of the Act; and 5

accordance with Rule 11 of the Cempanles (Audlt and Auditors) Rules, 2014, in
our opinion and to the best of ourmformahon and according to the explanations
given to us: A

)- o
“,

i. The Company has, dISM' edithe” |mpact if any, of pending litigations on its
financial posmon ln its f ancial statements,

ii. In our opinigh and as per the information and explanations provided to us
the Company “has not entered into any long-term contracts including
denvatwe contracts requiring provision under applicable laws or Indian
acccuntmg etandards for material foreseeable losses; and

iii. There has been no delay in transferring amounts, required to be transferred,
to the Investor Education and Protection Fund by the Company.

v. (@) The management has represented that, to the best of its knowledge and
.belief, as disclosed in the notes to the accounts, no funds have been
advanced or loaned or invested (either from borrowed funds or share
premium or any other sources or kind of funds) by the company to or in any
other peraon(a) or cntity(ica), including forcign cntitica (“intcrmediarica’),
with the understanding, whether recorded in writing or otherwise, that the
intermediary shall, directly or indirectly lend or invest in other persons or
entities identified in any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the Company
(“ultimate Beneficiaries™) or provide any guarantee, security or the like on
behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries.




Vi.

Place: Mumbai

Date : 13" May, 2023 %

vy D

(b) The management has represented that, to the best of its knowledge and
belief, as disclosed in the notes to the accounts, no funds have been
received by the Company from any person(s) or entity(ies), including foreign
entities (“Funding Parties”), with the understanding, whether recorded in
writing or otherwise, that the company shall, directly or indirectly, lend or
invest in other persons or entities identified in any manner whatsoever by or
on behalf of the funding party (“Ultimate Beneficiaries”) or provide any
guarantee, security or the like on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries.

(c) Based on the audit procedures that has been considered reas&it'j,g_b,!g and
appropriate in the circumstances, nothing has come to our npotice that:has
caused us to believe that the representations under iv (a) and“(b) above,

contain any material misstatement. i %

The company has not declared or paid any dividend éurlng 't'ht-;fs:’:year.

Proviso to Rule 3(1) of the Companies, (Accounts) /Rules, 2014 for
maintaining books of account using accounting software which has a feature
of recording audit trail (edit log) facility is, applicablé to the Company with
effect from April 1, 2023, and accogdinglyi, reporting under Rule 11(g) of
Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules; 2014" is not applicable for the
financial year ended March 31,2023. =

%

F For M/s. Kastury & Talati
% Chartered Accountants
Firm's Registration No: 104908W

G-

Dhiren P. Talati: Partner
Membership No: F/41867




"Annexure A" to the Independent Auditors' Report

Ihe Annexure Referred o In paragraph 5A of the Independent Audltor's Report of aven date
to the members of Phiroze Sethna Private Limited on the Financial Statements for the year
ended March 31, 2023.

1)

2)

3)

(@) (A) The Company has maintained proper records showing full particulars, including
quantitative details and situation of Property, Plant and Equipment.
]
(B) The Company has maintained proper records showing full partlcuiars of
Intangible Assets. ;

its roperty Plant
and Equipment by which Property, Plant and Equipment are« veraﬁed ;in“a phased
manner over a period of three years. In accordance with thls programme certain
Property, Plant and Equipment were verified during the year and no material
discrepancies were noticed on such verification. 2 B, 7

(¢) According to the information and explanations gwen ok us and on the basis of our
examination of the records of the Company, the? tttle-"qeeds ‘of immovable properties
disclosed in the financial statements are held |n the 5

(d) According to the information and explanatlons gwen to us and on the basis of our
examination of the records of the Company the: :Company has not revalued any of its
Property, Plant and Equipment or lntanglble assets during the year under consideration.

examination of the records of; the ( oany, No proceedings have been initiated or are
pending against the Company for.-,;holdlng any Benami Property under the Benami
Transactions (Prohlbltlons) Act '1988 and Rules made there under.

(a) The management’ as conducted the physical verification of inventory at reasonable
intervals and in..our opmlon the coverage and procedure of such verification by the
management is appropnate As informed to us, discrepancies of 10% or more in the
aggregate for. eachiclass of Inventory on physical verification of the inventory as
compared to books records has not been noticed.

(b) Accordmg to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our

Z the yesr has not been sanctioned working capital limits in excess of five crore rupees,

in: aggregate, from banks or financial institutions on the basis of security of current
assets.

During the year under consideration, the Company has made investments in and
granted unsecured loans or advances in the nature of loans to its subsidiary companies.

(@) (A) With respect to loans or advances in the nature of loans to subsidiary, the
aggregate amount provided during the year is Rs. 76.00 lakhs and balance outstanding
as on 31st March, 2023 is Rs. 76.00 lakhs. According to the information and
explanations given to us, the Company has not provided guarantees or securities to
Subsidiaries, joint ventures and associates.




5)

(B) According to the information and explanations given to us, the Company has
not given any loans or advances and guarantees or security to partiee other than
subsidiary, joint venture and associates,

(b) In our opinion and according to the explanation given to us, the Investments made
and tha tarms and conditions of the grant of Loans and Advances in the nature of Loans
to its subsidiaries are prima facie not prejudicial to the interest of the company.

(c) According to the information and explanations given to us, the schedule of
repayment of principal and payment of interest has not been stipulated. '%,._:_.:,5;;;:::,:;:__

(d) As stated above, there is no repayment schedule hence there is no overdfle amount
in respect of grant of Loans and Advances in the nature of Loan to it§ subsudlary

(e) According to the information and explanations given to us t ompany has not
granted any loan or advances in the nature of loan which has ?allen due during the year.

..........

overdue of existing loans given to the same parties. x

,.f-:::-.‘ e

(f) According to the information and explanatlons gwen to us,; “he company has granted

.......

same outstanding as on 31st March, 2023 i§ Rs 76.00° lakhs and represents 100% of all
loans and advances in the nature of Ioans granted by the company.

--;.,;;:_

The company has not given loans? made mvestments given guarantees and provided
securities covered by prows:one -0f section 185 and 186 of the Companies Act, 2013.
Therefore, clause 3(iv) of the-"aforesa[d Order is not applicable to the Company.

The Company has ,not’j’ ccepted any deposits or amounts which are deemed to be

provisions of SECl’IOH‘ ‘73 to 76 or any other relevant provisions of the Act and the
Compames (Acceptance ‘of Deposit) Rules, 2015 are not applicable.

(a) Accordlng to information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our
exdmination of the booka of account, and records, the Company has been generally
regular in depositing undisputed statutory dues including Goods and Service Tax,
Provident Fund, Employees’ State Insurance, Income-Tax, Sales tax, Service Tax, Duty
of Customs, Duty of Excise, Value added Tax, Cess and other statutory dues as
applicahle with the apprapriate antharities

According to the information and explanations given to us, no undisputed amounts
payable in respect of the above were in arrears as on the last day of the financial year
concerned for a period of more than six months from the date they become payable.
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9)

10)

.

(b) According to the information and explanation given to us and the records of the
company examined by us, there are no Statutory dues of Goods and Service Tax,
Provident Fund, Employees’ State Insurance, income tax, sales tax, service tax, duty of
customs, duty of excise, value added tax, cess and other material statutory dues which
have not been deposited on account of any dispute except for the following:-

Name of the | Nature of Dues | Amount Period to which Forum where dispute is
Statute (Rs. In matter relates pending
Lakhs)
Income Tax | Income Tax 10.20 |AY.20156-2016| Assessing Qﬁ,@gg{
Act, 1961 Mumbai”™
Income Tax | Income Tax 394.11 | AY.2018 - 2019 Assessmg QOfficer;

Act, 1961 Mumbal

company examined by us, the Company | has not defaulted in repayment of loans or
other borrowings or in the payment of mterest thereon fo any lender.

(b) According to the information and explanatzons given to us and the records of the
company examlned by us, the Company Is not declared willful defaulter by any bank or

(¢) According to the mformatlon and explanatlons given to us and the records of the
company examined by us the Company has not obtained any term loans.

given to us and the'reoords of the company examlned by us, the funds raised on short
term basis have not been‘utilized for long term purposes.

given g.o us_mand the records of the company examlned by us, the Company has not
taken any funds from any entity or person on account of or to meet the obligations of its

__sub51d|aries “associates or joint ventures.

(f) Based upon the audit procedures performed, the information and explanations
gwen to us and the records of the company examined by us, the Company has not
raised any loans during the year on the pledge of securities held in its subsidiaries, joint
ventures or associate companies.

(a) Based upon the audit procedures performed, the information and explanations
given to us and the records of the company examined by us, the company has not
raised moneys by way of initial public offer or further public offer (including debt
instruments) during the year. Accordingly, the provisions of clause 3(x)(a) of the Order
are not applicable to the Company.
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11)

12)

13)

14)

16)

L. T

(p) Based upon the audit procedures performed and the information and explanations
glven to us and based on our examination of the records of the company, the company
has not made any preferential allotment or private placement of shares or convertible
debentures (fully, partially or optionally convertible) during the year. Accordingly, the
provisions of clause 3(x)(b) of the Order are not applicable to the Company.

(a) Based upon the audit procedures performed and the information and explanations
given to us and based on our examination of the records of the company, no material
fraud by the Company or on the company has been noticed or reported during the year

and Auditors) Rules, 2014 with the Central Government, during theiyear, and up to the
date of this report in respect of any fraud against the Company byv lts Bfficers or
employees. % T

(¢) As represented to us by the management, there ara npﬁwmaile blnwer complaints
recelved by the company during the year. £

o, et

In our oplnlon and accordlng to the mformatlon a " -explanations given to us, the
ions of clause 3(xii) of the Order

are not applicable to the Company
According to the information and explaqaﬂons given to us and based on our
examination of the records of the Company, transactions with the related parties are in
compliance with sections 177:a 88%of the Companies Act and details of such
transactions have been dlsolosed in%the Financial Statements as required by the
applicable Indian Aocountmg Standards

(@ In our oplnlon and ba“"éd on our examination, the company does not have an

internal audit system.. anq is~also not required to have an internal audit system as per
section 138 of the Companles Act 2013.

(b)
appltcable to the: Company

B:ased‘au.po'n‘ihe audit procedures performed and the information and explanations given

:;_53’:':'10 us ari‘d based on our examination of the records of the company, the company has

not entéred into any non-cash transactions with directors or persons connected with its
directors. Accordingly, the provisions of section 192 of the Companies Act, 2013 are not
applicable to the Company.

(a) Based upon the audit procedures performed and the information and explanations
given to us and based on our examination of the records of the company, in our opinion,
the company is not required to be registered under section 45 |A of the Reserve Bank of
India Act, 1934.
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17)

18)

19)

(b) Based upon the audit procedures performed and the information and explanations
given to us and based on our examination of the records of the company, in our opinion,
the company has not conducted any Non-Banking Financial or Housing Finance
activities without a valid Certificate of Registration (CoR) from the Reserve Bank of
India as per the Reserve Bank of India Act, 1934.

(c) Based upon the audit procedures performed and the information and explanatlons
given to us and based on our examination of the records of the company, in oUrpinion,
the company is not a Core Investment Company (CIC) as defined in the regu!atlons
made by the Reserve Rank of India 7

(d) Based uponh the audit procedures performed and the mtormauon and explanatlons
given to us and based on our examination of the records of the cornpapy, the group
doss not have any Cors Investment Cumpany (CIC). i

Based upon the audit procedures performed and the mformatlon and explanations given
to us and based on our examination of the records ofmthe company, the Company has
Incurred cash lossas af & $2H.1/ lakhs dunng Ihe yHiesaindar considertion and 3
309.25 lakhs in the immediately precedlng ftna’nCIal yeai',

According to the informatio;;:::fa"'r'i‘q:;jtaxp__anations given to us and on the basis of the
financial ratios, ageing and ‘expécted dates of realization of financial assets and
payment of financial Ilabilsttes other information accompanying the financial statements,
our knowledge of the Board of ‘Directors and management plans and based on our
examination of the F'Vll’iF‘nf‘PeSLlpportlng the assumptions, nothing has come to our
attention, which catisesus 16 believe that any material uncertainty exists as on the date
of the audit report that.company is not capable of meeting its liabilities existing at the
date of balance sheet as and when they fall due within a period of one year from the
balance sheet: date.- ‘We, however, state that this is not an assurance as to the future
viability of:the‘company. We further state that our reporting is based on the facts up to
the.date of the audit report and we neither give any guarantee nor any assurance that
all liabilities. falling due within a period of one year from the balance sheet date, will get

_::-':-'::d[scharged by the company as and when they fall due.

20)

Inii:‘ﬁdr Opinion, the provisions of section 135 are not applicable to the Company.
Accordingly, the provisions of clause 3(xx) of the order are not applicable to the
Company.
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21) Based on the Second Proviso of Rule 6 of the Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014
provisions for Consolidated Financial Statements are not applicable to the Company, as
the Ultimate Holding Company prepares and files Consolidated Financial Statements
with the registrar. Accordingly, the provisions of clause 3(xxi) of the order are not

applicable to the Company.

For M/s Kastury & Talati

Chartered Accotintants
Firm’s Registra 6'q5.‘_N 0: 104908W

Place: Mumbai
Date: 13 May, 2023



"Annexure B" to the Independent Auditors' Report

The Annexure Referred to In paragraph 5B(f) of the Independent Auditor's Report of even
Uale lu e members of Phiroze 3ethna Private Limited on the Financial Gtatements for the
year ended March 31, 2023.

Report on the Internal Financial Controls under Clause (i) of Sub-section 3 of Section
143 of the Companies Act, 2013 ("the Act") y

.-‘z’
We have audited the internal financial controls over financial reporting of Phlroz'e' Séthna
Private Limited ("the Company") as of March 31, 2023 in conjunction wnth our audlt of the
financial statements of the Company for the year ended on that date.

Management's Responsibility for Internal Financial Controls o

The Company's management is responsible for establlehlng “’maintaining internal
financial controls based on the internal control over financial repgrting- criteria established by
the Company considering the essential components of lnternal control stated in the Guidance
Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over Flnanclal Repertmg issued by the Institute
of Chartered Accountants of India (ICAl). These“r&sponsibilities include the design,
implementation and maintenance of adequate mternal finapéial controls that were operating
effectively for ensuring the orderly and eff|01e_[_1_t_ condupt of its business, including adherence
to company's policies, the safeguarding of ifs assets, He prevention and detection of frauds
and errors, the accuracy and completeness “of :the accounting records, and the timely

preparation of reliable financial mformatlo a -reanred under the Companies Act, 2013.

Auditors' Responsibility

Our responSIblllty is to express “an; opmlon on the Company's mternal financial controls over

Guidance Note on, Audlf of, Internal Fmanmal Controls Over Financial Reporting (the
"Guidance Note") and, the»Standards on Auditing, issued by ICAl and deemed to be
prescribed under: sectlcn :143(10) of the Companies Act, 2013, to the extent applicable to an
audit of interpal ﬁnanmal controls, both applicable to an audit of Internal Financial Controls
and, both |ssued__py the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India. Those Standards and the
Guidan_.ge;:_Nb;_e require that we comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform the
audit to obtain‘reasonable assurance about whether adequate internal financial controls over
financial reportmg was established and maintained and if such controls operated effectively in
all materlal respects.

Our audtl involves performing procedures o obtain audit evidence about the adequacy of (he
internal financial controls system over financial reporting and their operating effectiveness.
Our audit of internal financial controls over financial reporting included obtaining an
understanding of internal financial controls over financial reporting, assessing the risk that a
material weakness exists, and testing and evaluating the design and operating effectiveness
of internal control based on the assessed risk. The procedures selected depend on the
auditor's judgment, including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the
financial statements, whether due to fraud or error.
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.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide
a basis for our audit opinion on the Company's internal financial controls system over
financial reporting.

Meaning of Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting

A company's internal financial control over financial reporting is a process de;gigned to
provide reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting” and the

0

preparation of financial statements for external purposes in accordance with “generally
accepted accounting principles. A company's internal financial control over financial reporting
includes those policies and procedures that (1) pertain to the maintenancp'*oﬁ%gécords that, in
reasonable detail, accurately and fairly reflect the transactions and dispositions: of4he assets
of the company; (2) provide reasonable assurance that transactions are recorded as
necessary to permit preparation of financial statements in accordance with generally
accepted accounting principles, and that receipts and expenditures of the company are being
made only in accordance with authorisations of managemept‘and ‘directors of the company;
and (3) provide reasonable assurance regarding prej:entidn_‘ or” timely detection of
unauthorised acquisition, use, or disposition of the company's ‘assets that could have a

material effect on the financial statements. 35~

17

Inherent Limitations of Internal Financial qQﬁ'{rgfsgigvéF"’?inancial Reporting

Because of the inherent limitations of internal financial controls over financial reporting,
including the possibility of collusion orsimproper management override of controls, material
misstatements due to error or fraud4nay occur and not be detected. Also, projections of any
evaluation of the internal finangial controls® over financial reporting to future periods are
subject to the risk that the intémat:financial control over financial reporting may become
inadequate because of charges in ¢onditions, or that the degree of compliance with the
policies or procedures may, détériorate.

Opinion

In our opinion, théz:Company has, in all material respects, an adequate internal financial
controls system. over“financial reporting and such internal financial controls over financial
reporting,were operating effectively as at March 31, 2023, based on the internal control over
financial reporting’criteria established by the Company considering the essential components
of internal control stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over

Financial Bep’orting issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India.

For M/s. Kastury & Talati
Chartered Accountants
Firm’s Registration No: 104908W

s

Place: Mumbai Dhiren P. Talati: Partner
Date: 13t May, 2023 Membership No: F/41867
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1

1

Phiroze Sethna Private Limited
CIN U25209MH1975PTC018396
Balance Sheet as at 31st March 2023

Notes
IASSETS
Non-current assets
(a) Property, plant and equipment and Intangible Assets
(i) Property, plant and equipment 2
(b} Financial Assets
i)Investments 3
ii)Other financial assets 4
() Deferred tax assets (net) 5
(d) Income tax assets(net) 6
Current Assets
(a) Inventories T
(b) Financial Assets
i)investments 8
ii)Trade receivables 2
i) ash and cash equivalantn 10
iv)Bank balances other than (iii) above 11
v)Loans 12
(c) Current Tax (Net) 13
() Olhet sutrant a8e6ts 14
Huit Cuienl Assels ligld iut sdle }]
Total Assets
I EQUITY AND LIABILITIES
Equity
(a) Equity Share capital 16
(b) Other equity 17
Total Equity
Non Current Liabilities
Current liabiiities
(a) Financial liabilities
i)Borrowings 18
ii)Trade payables
Irade payables -MSMED 19
Trade payables -Others 19
{b) Other current liabilities 20
{c) Provisions 21
Total Liabilities
Total Equity and Liabilities
1-40

As at 31/03/2023 As at 31/03/2022

(Rs. In fakhs) (Rs. In lakhs)

20.31 105.83
238.33 319.68
6030 55.07
89.11 107.01
20.56 12.33
424.64 600,42
16.57 82.25
34.65 34.25
134 87 642.60
20.92 8.39
5.00 23.75
76.00 -
6.74 8.15
11.08 8.34
ba.b/ .o
7N 41 0771
799.06 1,408.55
4.00 4.00
467,50 795.14
471.50 799.14
90.00 90.00
17.64 64.02
109.08 34560
25.06 87.00
85.77 2278
327.56 609.40
799.06 1,408.55

As per our attached report of even date
For M/s Kastury & Talati

Dhiren P. Talati

Partner

Membership No. F/41867

Place : Mumbai

Date : 13th May 2023
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On behalf of the Board of Directors

ik

Sameer V Shah Rashmi S Gavli
Director Director
Din: 00105721 Din: 08001649

Place : Mumbai
Date : 13th May 2023




Phiroze Sethna Private Limited
CIN U25209MH1975PTC018396
Phiroze Sethna Private Limited
CIN U25209MH1975PTC018396
Statement of Profit and Loss for the period ended 31st March 2023

Notes 2022-23 2021-22
(Rs. In lakhs) (Rs. In lakhs)
| Revenue From Operations 22 441.64 2,280.60
I Other Income 23 67.37 99.83
n Total Revenue (I+1}) 509.01 2,380.43
v Expenses :
a) Cost of Materials Consumed 24 415.39 2,060.05
b) Changes in Inventories of Finished goods, Work-in-progress and 14.77 34.01
Stock-in-Trade 25
c) Employee Benefits Expense 26 272,09 411.23
d) Finance Costs 27 8.22 13.82
e) Depreciation and Amortisation expense 28 6.22 9.03
f) Other Expenses 29 108.03 163.48
Total Expenses 82472 2,691.62
A Profit before Excepfional items and Tax (315.71) (311.19)
A\ Exceptional ltems - -
Vil Profit before Tax (315.71) (311.19)
Vil Tax Expense
Current Tax 0.00 0.00
Earlier Years Tax Adjustments - (0:03)
Deferred Tax 18.77 713
Total Tax Expense 18.77 7o
X Profit for the Year (334.48) (318.29)
X Other Comprehenshive Income
1 i) ltems that will not be reclassified to profit or loss 6.83 2.34
ii) Income Tax relating to items that will not be reclassified to ~ F
profit or loss
2 i) ltems that will be reclassified to profit or loss
ii} Income Tax relating to items that will be reclassified to profit or
loss
Other Comprehensive Income (1+2) 6.83 2.34
Total Comprehenshive income (327.65) (315.95)
Earning Per Equity Share of Face Value of Rs. 100 2y
X each
Basic (in Rs.) (8,362.01) (7,957.21)
Difuted (in Rs.) (8,362.01) (7.957.21)
Significant Accounting Policies and Notes on 140

Financial Statements

As per our attached report of even date.
For M/s [astury & Talati

On behalf of the Board of Directors

pn- (o

Dhiren P, Talafti Sameer V Shah Rashmi § Gavli
Partner Director Director
Membership No. F/41867 Din: 00105721 Din: 08001649
Place : Mumbai Place : Mumbai

Date : 13th May 2023
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Phiroze Sethna Pvt Ltd

Cash Flow Statement for the year ended 31st March 2023

(Rs. In Lakhs)
31.03.2023 31.03.2022
Cash Flow from Operating Activities
B il D g (3. (811.18)
Adjustments for :
Depreciation and amortisation 6.22 9.03
Loss on Sale of Property,Plant & Equipement - 0.09
Employee ESOP compensation - =
Finance Cusl Bt 13,82
14.44 2295
Less:
Fourelgn Exchange Fluctuation - -
Mat @ain on Invostments . 1178
Protit on Sale of Praperty,Plant & Equipement
Frinr Perlod ltems -
Interest income 0.89 1.05
Dividend Received 6.50 3.03
(7.39) {39.86)
Operating Profit before working capital changes (308.66) (328.10)
Adjustments for :
Trade and Other Receivables 423.74 (252.28)
Inventories 65.68 138.24
Trade and Other Payables {275.01) 146.50
214.41 32.46

Cash generated from operations (94.25) (295.64)
Income taxes paid (Net of Refund) (6.82) 1.78
Net Cash from Operating Activities (A) (101.08) (293.86)
Cash Flow from Investing Activities
Proceeeds from Sale of Property, plant & equipments 14.73 8.20
Payment to acquire Property, plant & equipments - (0.64)
Purchase of Investment 4.54 -
Sale of Investment 76.41 253.10
Interest Income 0.89 1.05
Dividend Income 6.50 3.03
Net Cash from Investing Activities (B) 103.06 264.73
Cash Flow from Financing Actlvites
Finance Cusl (8.22) 18.82
Net Cash from Flnanclng Activities (L} (8.22) 13.82
Net (Nerreasa)/Inrraasa in Cach & Cach Activitior (A+R+C) (G.22) (17.00)
Cash and Cash Equivalents and Other Bank Balances as on Opening 32.14 47.44
Cash and Cash Equivalents and Other Bank Balances as on Closing

25.92 32.14

For ivifs Rastury & (alatl

C.A.Dhiren P.Talati

Partnar

Membership No. 41867

Place: Mumbai

Date : 13th May 2023
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By Order of the of the Board of Directors
tor Phiroze Sethna Private Limited

Yy

Sameer V Shah
Diieclui
Din: 00105721

Rashmi $ Gavli
Dl weiut
Din: 08001649




Phiroze Sethna Private Limited

Statement Of Changes In Equity For The Year Ended 31st March 2023

(a) Equity share capital

Rs. in Lakhs

Balance as at 1st April 2021
Changes in equity share capital
Balance as at 31st March 2022

No. of Shares

Amount

4,000

4,000

4.00

4.00

Changes in equity share capital
Balance as at 31 March 2023

4,000

4.00

(b) Other Equity

Rs. in Lakhs

Reserves and Surplus

Particulars

General Reserve

Capital
Redemption
Reserve

Retained
earnings/Profit
& Loss Account

Total other
equity

Balance as at 1st April 2021

514.40

0.05

596.63

1,111.08

Total Comprehensive

Profit for the year

(318.29)

(318.29)

Other comprehensive income for the year

2.34

2.34

Set off of Dividend Tax in respect of Dividend from Subsidiary Company

Tax Effect on Othe Comprehensive Income

Transactions with owners of the company

Interim Dividend on Equity Shares

Interim Dividend Distribution Tax

Balance as at 31st March 2022

514.40

0.05

280.68

795.13

Total Comprehensive

Profit for the year

(334.48)

(334.48)

Other comprehensive income for the year

6.83

6.83

Set off of Dividend Tax in respect of Dividend from Subsidiary
Company

Tax Effect on Othe Comprehensive Income

Interim Dividend

Tax on Interim Dividend

Balance as at 31st March 2023

514.40

0.05

As per our attached report of even date
For M/s Kastury & Talati
Chartered Accountants

Dhiren P. Talati

Partner

Membership No. F/41867
Place : Mumbai

Date : 13th May 2023
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On behalf of the Board of Directors

\\ Ih—

Sameer V Shah
Director
Din: 00105721

Rashmi S Gavli
Directar
Din: 08001649




Notes to the Financial Statements

For the year ended March 31, 2023

COMPANY INFORMATION:

Phiroze Sethna Private Limited (the ‘Company’) is a Private Limited company domiciled and incorporated in
India under the Indian Companies Act, 1956. The registered office of the Company is located at EL-
71,Chembond Centre,MIDC,Mahape, Navi Mumbai-400 710

Ihe Company pioncered the manutacture ot Polyvinyl Chloride (PVC) impression rollers used in duplicating
machines exclusively for Gestetner India Ltd aud PVC Dip imvulded prouducts Tur bolh consunier and indusrial
applications. The Company went on to specialize in liquid plastic products based on PVC such as PVC Plastisols,
PVL Scalants, PVL Underbody Coatings, 'VC Organosols and PVC Protective Coatings.

1. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND KEY ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND JUDGEMENTS

1.1 Basis of preparation of financial statements

The financial statements of the Company are prepared in Compliance with Indian Accounting Standards (‘Ind
AS’) notified under Section 133 of the Companies Act, 2013, read together with the Companies (Indian
Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015 and Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Amendment Rules, 2016
and other relevant provisions of the Act. The Statements are prepared under the historical cost convention
on the accrual basis except for certain financial instruments which are measured at fair values at the end of
each reporting period, as stated in the accounting policies set out below.

The accounting policies have been applied consistently over all the periods presented in these financial
statements except where a newly-issued accounting standard is initially adopted or a revision to an existing
accounting standard requires a change in the accounting policy hitherto in use.

1.2 Functional and presentation Currency

The financial statements are prepared in INR, which is the company’s functional currency and is rounded off
to the nearest lakhs except otherwise indicated.

1.3 Current / Non-Current Classification:
Any asset or liability is classified as current if it satisfies any of the following conditions:
i. the asset/liability is expected to be realised/ settled in the Company’s normal operating cycle;
ii. the asset is intended for sale or consumption;

iii. the{g;,f.e.t[j_iability is held primarily for the purpose of trading;
N,

T(H-? CHARTERED )

\\= Accounmay;s ),




iv, the asset/liability is expected to be realised/ settled within twelve months after the reporting
period

V. the asset is cash or cash equivalent unless it is restricted from being exchanged or used to settle a
lability Tur dl least twelve mundhs afwer the repotdng ddie;

vi, in Lthie vase ol a liabilily, the Company does not have an uncondltional right to defer settlement of
the liability for at least twelve months after the reporting date.

All olher assets and liabilities are classifled as non-current

For the purpose of current / non-current classification of assets and liabilities, the Company has
ascertained its normal operating cycle as twelve months and other criteria set out in the Schedule Il to
the Companies Act, 2013. This is based on the nature of product/services and the time taken between the
acquisition of assets for processing and their realization in cash and cash equivalents.

1.4 Use of Estimates

The preparation of Financial Statements is in conformity with Ind AS and requires the Management to make
estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of assets and liabilities, the disclosures of
contingent liabilities on the date of Financial Statements and reported amounts of revenues and expenses
during the period. Accounting estimates can change from period to period. Appropriate changes in estimates
are made as the Management becomes aware of the changes in circumstances surrounding the estimates.
Changes in estimates are reflected in the financial statements in the period in which changes are made, and
if material, their effects are disclosed in the notes to the financial statements.

1.5 Summary of significant accounting policies:

a) Property, Plant and Equipment
Measurement at recognition:
An itam of property, plant and equipment that qualifics as an asset is measured on initial recognition at
cost An item of Property, plant and equipment (PPE) that qualifies as an asset is measured on initial
recognition at cost. Following intial recognition, items of property, plant and equipment are carried at
its cost less accumulaled deprecialion and accumulated impairment losses if any.

The Company identifies and determines cost of each part of an item of property, plant and equipment
separately, if the part has a cost which is significant to the total cost of that item of property, plant and
equipment and has useful life that is materially different from that of the remaining item.

The cost of an item of property, plant and equipment comprises of its purchase price including taxes {other
than those subsequently recoverable from tax authorities), duties, freight and other directly attributable
costs related to the acquisition or construction of the respective assets. Profit or Loss on disposal of tangible
assets is recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss.

Subsequent Measurement: 2\
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b)

Subsequent costs are included in the asset’s carrying amount or recognised as a separate asset, as
appropriate, only when it is probable that future economic benefits associated with the item will flow to
the Company and the cost of the item can be measured reliably. The carrying amount of any component
accounted for as a separate asset is derecngnised when replaced All nther repairs and maintenance are
charged to the Statement of Profit and Loss during the reporting period in which they are incurred.

Capital work in progress

Cost of assets not ready for intended use, as on the balance sheet date, is shown as capital work in progress.

Duprecialivn and Amortization:

pepreciation on PPE™ (other than trée hold and lease hold tand) has been provided on Written Down Valuc
basis al the rales prescribed in Schedule Il of the Companies Act, 2013,

Freehold land is not depreciated. Leasehold land is amortized over the primary period of lease.

Derecognition
The carrying amount of an item of property, plant and equipment is derecognised on disposal or when no

future economic benefits are expected from its use or disposal. The gain or loss arising from the
Derecognition of an item of property, plant and equipment is measured as the difference between the
net disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of the item and is recognised in the Statement of Profit
and Loss when the item is derecognised.

Revenue Recognition
Revenue is measured at the fair value of consideration received or receivable. Amounts disclosed as
revenue are inclusive of Goods and Service Tax (GST) and net of returns, trade discount or rebates and
applicable taxes and duties collected on behalf of the government and which are levied on such sales.
The Company recognises revenue when the amount of revenue can be reliably measured, and it is probable
that future economic benefits will flow to the Company.

i. Revenue from sale of goods is recognised on transfer of all significant risks and rewards
of ownership to the buyer as per terms of Contracl.

i, Revenue from services is recognised pro-rata as and when services are rendered.

iii. Interest income is recognised using effective interest method on time proportion basis
taking in to account the amount outstanding.

iv. Nividend income is recognised when the Company's right to receive is established by the
reporting date, which is generally when shareholders approve the dividend.

Lease Accounting
Leases are classified as finance leases whenever the terms of the lease, transfers substantially all risks and

rewards of ownership to the lessee. All other leases are classificd as operaling lcascs. Lease rentals on
assels and premises laken on vperating lease are recognised as expense In the Statement of Profit and Loss
on an accrual basis over the lease term.
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d) Inventory
Inventories are valued at lower of the cost determined on weighted average basis or net realisable value. The

comparison of cost and net realisable value is made on an item-by-item basis. Damaged, unserviceable and
inert stocks are valued at net realizable value.

Cost of inventory comprises all costs of purchase, duties, taxes (other than those subsequently recoverable
from tax authorities) and all other costs incurred in bringing the inventory to their present location and
condition

Cost of finished goods and work-in-progress includes the cost of direct materials, direct labour, an
appropriate allocation of production overheads, and other costs incurred in bringing the inventories to their
present location and condition.

The company considers factors like estimated shelf life, product discontinuances and ageing of inventory in
determining the provision for slow moving, obsolete and other non-saleable inventory and adjusts the
inventory provisions to reflect the recoverable value of inventory.

e) Impairment of Assets

i) Impairment of financial assets

The Company recognizes loss allowances using the expected credit loss (ECL) model for the financial assets
which are not fair valued through profit or loss. Loss allowance for trade receivables with no significant
financing component is measured based on lifetime ECL. For all other financial assets, ECLs are measured at
an amount equal to the 12-month ECL, unless there has been a significant increase in credit risk from initial
recognition in which case those are measured at lifetime ECL. The amount of ECLs (or Reversal) that is
required to adjust the loss allowance at the reporting date to the amount that is required to be recognized is
recognized as an impairment gain or loss in profit or loss.

ii) Impairment of non-financial assets

At Balance Sheet date, an assessment is done to determine whether there is any indication of impairment in
the carrying amount of the Company’s fixed assets. If any such indication exists, the asset's recoverable
amount is estimated. An impairment loss is recognised whenever the carrying amount of an asset exceeds its
recoverable amount.

An assessment is also done at each Balance Sheet date whether there is any indication that an impairment
loss recognised for an asset in prior accounting periods may no longer exist or may have decreased. If any
such indication exists, the asset’s recoverable amount is estimated. The carrying amount of the fixed asset is
increased to the revised estimate of its recoverable amount so that the increased carrying amount does not
exceed the carrying amount that would have been determined had no impairment loss been recognised for
the assetin prior years. A reversal of impairment loss is recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss for the
year.

After recognition of impairment loss or reversal of impairment loss as applicable, the depreciation charge
for the asset is adjusted in future periods to allocate the asset’s revised carrying amount on Written Down

Value basis. - =g
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f)

Financial Instruments
Afinancial instrument s any contract that gives rise to a financial asset of one entity and a financial liability

or equity instrument of another entity. Financial instruments also include derivative contracts such as
foreign currency foreign exchange forward contracts, futures and currency options.

i} Financial Assets

Initial recognition and measurement:

Clawifiratinn

The Company shall classify financial assets as suhsequently measiired at amartised enst, fair valie
through other comprehensive income (FVOCI) or fair value through profit and loss (FVTPL) on the basis
of its business model for managing the financial assets and the contractual cash flow characteristics of

the financial asset.

Initial recognition and measurement

All financial assets are recognised initially at fair value plus, in the case of financial assets not recorded at
fair value through profit or loss, transaction costs that are attributable to the acquisition of the financial
asset. Purchases or sales of financial assets that require delivery of assets within a time frame established
by regulation or convention in the market place (regular way trades) are recognised on the trade date,
i.e., the date that the Company commits to purchase or sell the asset.

Where the fair value of a financial asset at initial recognition is different from its transaction price, the
difference between the fair value and the transaction price is recognised as a gain or loss in the Statement
of Profit and Loss at initial recognition if the fair value is determined through a quoted market price in an
active market for an identical asset (i.e. level 1 input) or through a valuation technique that uses data
from observable markets (i.e. level 2 input).

In case the fair value is not determined using a level 1 or level 2 input as mentioned above, the difference
between the fair value and transaction price is deferred appropriately and recognised as a gain or loss in
the Statement of Profit and Loss only to the extent that such gain or loss arises due to a change in factor
that market participants take into account when pricing the financial asset.

However, trade receivables that do not contain a significant financing component are measured at
transaction price.

Subsequent measurement

For subsequent measurement, the Company classifies a financial asset in accordance with the below

criteria:




i The Cnmpany’s husiness mndel for managing the financial asset and
ii. The contractual cash flow characteristics of the financial asset.
Based on the above critena, the Company classifies its financial assets into the following categories:
i.  Financial assets measured at amortised cost
il. Financial assets measured at fair value through other comprehensive income (FVTOCI)
. Financial assets measured at fair value through protit or loss (FVTPL)
i. Financial assets measured at amortised cost

A financial asset is measured at the amortised cost if both the following conditions are met:

a) The Company’s business model objective for managing the financial asset is to hold financial assets in

order to collect contractual cash flows, and

b) The contractual terms of the financial asset give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are solely

payments of principal and interest on the principal amount outstanding.

This category applies to cash and bank balances, trade receivables, loans and other financial assets of the

Company. Such financial assets are subsequently measured at amortised cost.
ii. Financial assets measured at FVTOCI:
A financial asset is measured at FVTOCI if both of the following conditions are met:

a) The Company’s business model objective for managing the financial asset is achieved both by collecting
contractual cash flows and selling the financial assets, and

b) The contractual terms of the financial asset give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are solely
payments of principal and interest on the principal amount outstanding.

This category applies to certain investments in debt instruments. Such financial assets are subsequently
measured at fair value at each reporting date. Fair value changes are recognised in the Other
Comprehensive Income {OCl). However, the Company recognises interest income and impairment losses
and its reversals in the Statement of Profit and Loss.

On Derecognition of such financial assets, cumulative gain or loss previously recognised in OCl is reclassified
from equity to Statement of Profit and Loss.

Further, the Company, through an irrevocable election at initial recognition, has measured certain
investments in equity instruments at FVTOCI. The Company has made such election on an instrument by

instrument basis. These equity instruments are neither held for trading nor are contingent consideration
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recognised under a business combination. Pursuant to such irrevocable election, subsequent changes in
the fair value of such equity instruments are recognised in OCl. However, the Company recognises dividend
income from such instruments in the Statement of Profit and Loss when the right to receive payment is
established, it is probable that the economic benefits will flow to the Company and the amount can be
measured reliably.

On Derecognition of such financial assets, cumulative gain or loss previously recognised in OCl is not
reclassified from the equity to Statement of Profit and Loss.

Further, the Company, through an irrevocable election at initial recognition, has measured certain
investments in equity instruments at FVTOCI. The Company has made such election on an instrument by
instrument basis. These equity instruments are neither held for trading nor are contingent consideration
recognised under a business combination. Pursuant to such irrevocable election, subsequent changes in
the fair value of such equity instruments are recognised in OCI. However, the Company recognises dividend
income from such instruments in the Statement of Profit and Loss when the right to receive payment is
established, it is probable that the economic benefits will flow to the Company and the amount can be
measured reliably.

On Derecognition of such financial assets, cumulative gain or loss previously recognised in OCl is not
reclassified from the equity to Statement of Profit and Loss. However, the Company may transfer such
cumulative gain or loss into retained earnings within equity.

iii. Financial assets measured at FVTPL:

A financial asset is measured at FVTPL unless it is measured at amortised cost or at FVTOCI as explained
above. This is a residual category applied to all other investments of the Company excluding investments in
subsidiary and associate companies. Such financial assets are subsequently measured at fair value at each
reporting date. Fair value changes are recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss.

De-recognition

Afinancial asset (or, where applicable, a part of a financial asset or part of a group of similar financial assets)
is derecognised (i.e. removed from the Company’s Balance Sheet) when any of the following occurs:
i. The contractual rights to cash flows from the financial asset expires;

ii. The Company transfers its contractual rights to receive cash flows of the financial asset and has
substantially transferred all the risks and rewards of ownership of the financial asset;

iii. The Company retains the contractual rights to receive cash flows but assumes a contractual obligation
to pay the cash flows without material delay to one or more recipients under a ‘pass-through’ arrangement
(thereby substantially transferring all the risks and rewards of ownership of the financial asset);

iv. The Company neither transfers nor retains substantially all risk and rewards of ownership and does not
retain control over the financial asset.

in cases where Company has neither transferred nor retained substantially all of the risks and rewards of
the financial asset, but retains_control of the financial asset, the Company continues to recognise such




financial asset to the extent of its continuing involvement in the financial asset. In that case, the Company
also recognises an associated liability. The financial asset and the associated liability are measured on a
basis that reflects the rights and obligations that the Company has retained.
On Derecognition of a financial asset, (except as mentioned in (ii) above for financial assets measured at
FVTOCI), the difference between the carrying amount and the consideration received is recognised in the
Statement of Profit and Loss.

Impairment of financial assets

The Company applles expected credit losses (FCL) model for measurement and recognition ot loss
allowance on the following:

i. Trade receivables

ii. Financial assets measured at amortised cost (other than trade receivables)

iii. Financial assets measured at fair value through other comprehensive income (FVTOCI)

In case of trade receivables, the Company follows a simplified approach wherein an amount equal to
lifetime ECL is measured and recognised as loss allowance. In case of other assets (listed as (ii) and (iii)
above), the Company determines if there has been a significant increase in credit risk of the financial asset
since initial recognition. If the credit risk of such assets has not increased significantly, an amount equal to
12-month ECL is measured and recognised as loss allowance.

However, if credit risk has increased significantly, an amount equal to lifetime ECL is measured and
recognised as loss allowance.

Subsequently, if the credit quality of the financial asset improves such that there is no longer a significant
increase in credit risk since initial recognition, the Company reverts to recognising impairment loss
allowance based on 12-month ECL

ii. Financial liabilities
Initial recognition and measurement

The Company recognises a financial liability in its Balance Sheet when it becomes party to the contractual
provisions of the instrument. All financial liabilities are recognised initially at fair value minus, in the case
of financial liabilities not recorded at fair value through profit or loss (FVTPL), transaction costs that are
attributable to the acquisition of the financial liability.
Where the fair value of a financial liability at initial recognition is different from its transaction price, the
difference between the fair value and the transaction price is recognised as a gain or loss in the Statement
of Profit and Loss at initial recognition if the fair value is determined through a quoted market price in an
active market for an identical asset (i.e. level 1 input) or through a valuation technique that uses data
from observable markets (i.e. level 2 input).
In case the fair value is not determined using a level 1 or level 2 input as mentioned above, the difference
between the fair value qnd transaction price is deferred appropriately and recognised as a gain or loss in
R LR
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8)

h)

the Statement of Profit and Loss only to the extent that such gain ar lass arises due to a change in factor
that market participants take inta accaunt when pricing the financial liahility

Subsequent measurement:

All financial liabilities of the Company are subsequently measured at amortised cost using the effective
interest method.

Under the effective interest method, the tuture cash payments are exactly discounted to the initial
recognition value using the effective interest rate, The cumulative amortisation using the effective
intercst method of the difference hetween the initial recognition amnunt and the maturity amonnt is
added to tha initial recognition value (net of principal repayments, if any) of the financial liability over the
relevant period of the financial liahility ta arrive at the amartised cost at each reporting date. The
corresponding effect ot the amortlsation under effective interest method 1s recognised as interest
expense over the relevant period of the financial liability. The same is included under finance cost in the
Statement of Profit and Loss.

Derecognition

A financial liability is derecognised when the obligation under the liability is discharged or cancelled or
expires. When an existing financial liability is replaced by another from the same lender on substantially
different terms, or the terms of an existing liability are substantially modified, such an exchange or
modification is treated as the derecognition of the original liability and the recognition of a new liability.
The difference in the respective carrying amounts is recognised in the statement of profit and loss.

Trade and other payables

These amounts represent liabilities for goods and services provided to the Company prior to the end of
financial year which are unpaid. The amounts are usually unsecured. Trade and other payables are
presented as current liabilities unless payment is not due within twelve months after the reporting period.
They are recognised initially at their fair value.

Provistons:

Thu Cumpuny recognlzes a provision when thera 18 a prasant (l&gal or construclive) obligalivn as o
result of a past event that can be estimated reliably and it is probable that an out flow of economic
benefits will be required to settle the obligation. These are reviewed at each balance sheet date and
adjusted to reflect the current management eslimates. If the effect of the time value of money Is
material, provisions are determined by discounting the expected future cash flows specific to the
liability. The increase in the provision duc to the passage of time is recognised as interest expense.

Contingent liahility:

A disclosure for a contingent liability is made when there is a possible obligation or a present obligation
that may, but probably will not requirc an outflow of resources embadying econamic henefils or Lhe
dimuunt ol such obligatlon cannot be measured reliably. When there 1s a possible obligation or a present
obligation in respect of which likelihood of outflow of resources embodying economic benefits is remote,
no provision or disclosure is made.

s
A7\

‘ {@ CHARTERE S \
'|1.~,E. ACCOUNTAN 5 =
N i




j) Fair Value Measurement

The Company's measures Financial Instruments at fair value at each Balance sheet date.

Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly
transaction between market participants at the measurement date. The fair value measurement is
based on the presumption that the transaction to sell the asset or transfer the liability takes place
either:

— Inthe principal market for the asset or liability, or
— Inthe absence of a principal market, In the most advantageous market for the asset or liability

The principal or the most advantageous market must be accessible by the Company.

The fair value of an asset or a liability is measured using the assumptions that market participants would
use when pricing the asset or liability, assuming that market participants act in their economic best
interest.

The Company uses valuation techniques that are appropriate in the circumstances and for which
sufficient data are available to measure fair value, maximising the use of relevant observable inputs
and minimising the use of unobservable inputs.

~ Allassets and liabilities for which fair value is measured or disclosed in the financial statements are
categorised within the fair value hierarchy, described as follows, based on the lowest level input
that is significant to the fair value measurement as a whole: Level 1 - Quoted (unadjusted)
market prices in active markets for identical assets or liabilities

— Level 2 - Valuation techniques for which the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value
measurement is directly or indirectly observable

— Level 3 - Valuation techniques for which the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value
measurement is unobservable

For assets and liabilities that are recognised in the financial statements on a recurring basis,
the Company determines whether transfers have occurred between levels in the hierarchy by re-
assessing categorisation (based on the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value
measurement as a whole) at the end of each reporting period.

For the purpose of fair value disclosures, the Company has determined classes of assets and

liabilities on the basis of the nature, characteristics and risks of the asset or liability and the level of the
fair value hierarchy as explained above.

k) Foreign Currency Translation:

Initial recognition:
Transactions in foreign currencies entered into by the Company are accounted in the functional
currency at the exchange rates prevailing on the date of the transaction. Exchange differences arising
on foreign exchange transactions settled during the year are recognized in the statement of profit and
loss.




1)

Measurement of foreign currency items at the Balance Sheet date:

Foreign currency denominated monetary assets and liabilities of the Company are restated at the
year-end closing exchange rates. Non-monetary items are recorded at the exchange rate prevailing
on the date of the transaction. Exchange differences arising out of these translations are charged to
the statement of profit and loss

Trade Receivables
Trade receivables are recognised initially at fair value and subsequently measured at amortised cost using
the effective interest method, less impairment losses.

m) Income Taxes

income tax expenses comprises of current and deferred tax expense and is recognized in the statement
of profit or loss except to the extent that it relates to items recognized directly in equity or in OCI.

a. Current tax:
Current tax is the amount of expected tax payable or recoverable on the taxable profit or loss for the

year and any adjustment to the tax payable or recoverable in respect of previous years. It is measured
using tax rates enacted or substantively enacted by the end of reporting period. Management
periodically evaluates positions taken in the tax returns with respect to situations in which applicable
tax regulations are subject to interpretation and establishes provisions where appropriate.

b. Deferred tax:

Deferred tax is recognized on temporary differences between the carrying amounts of assets and
liabilities in the financial statements and the corresponding tax bases used in the computation of
taxable profit under Income Tax Act, 1961.However, in case of temporary differences that arise from
initial recognition of asset or liability in a transaction (other than in a business combination) that affect
neither the taxable profit nor the accounting profit, deferred tax liabilities are not recognized. Also,
for temporary differences if any that may arise from initial recognition of goodwill, deferred tax
liabilities are not recognized.

Deferred tax assets are generally recognized for all deductible temporary differences (if any) to the
extent it is probable that future taxable profits will be available against which they can be utilized.

Deferred tax assets are reviewed at the end of each reporting period and are reduced to the extent
that it is no longer probable that sufficient taxable profits will be available to allow the benefits of part
or all of such deferred tax assets to be utilized. Such reductions are reversed when the probability of
the future taxable profits improves.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the tax rates that have been enacted or
substantively enacted by the Balance Sheet date and are expected to apply to taxable income in the
years in which those temporary differences are expected to be recovered or settled.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are offset only if they relate to income taxes levied by the same
taxation authority on the same taxable entity.

Current and deferred tax are recognised as income or an expense in the Statement of Profit and Loss,
except when they relate to items that are recognised in Other Comprehensive Income, in which case,
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the current and deferred tax income/expense are recognised in Other Comprehensive Income. The
Company offsets current tax assets and current tax liabilities, where it has a legally enforceable right to
set off the recognised amounts and where it intends either to settle on a net basis, or to realise the
assct and scttle the hability simultanecusly. (h case of deleried Lda assels and deferied Lax liabilities,
the same are offset il the Company has a legally entorceable right to set ott corresponding current tax
assets agalnst current tax liahilities and the deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities relate to
income taxes levied by the same tax authority on the Company.

n) Cash and Cash Equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents for the purpose of Cash Flow Statement comprise cash and cheques in hand,
bank balances, demand deposits with banks where the original maturity is three months or less and other
short term highly liquid investments net of bank overdrafts which are repayable on demand as these
form an integral part of the Company’s cash management.

o) Employee Benefits:

Short Term Employee Benefits:

All employee benefits payable wholly within twelve months of rendering the service are classified as
short term employee benefits and they are recognized in the period in which the employee renders
the related service. The Company recognizes the undiscounted amount of short term employee
benefits expected to be paid in exchange for services rendered as a liability (accrued expense) after
deducting any amount already paid. The Company does not allow any accumulation of leave balance
or encashment thereof.

Post-Employment Benefits:

I.  Defined Contribution plans:

Defined contribution plans are Employee's Provident Fund scheme, Employee state insurance
scheme for all applicable employees and superannuation scheme for eligible employees. The
Company contribution for the year paid / payable to a defined contribution plan as an expense in
the Statement nf Profit and | nss

ll.  Defined Benefit plans:

Provident Fund scheme
The Company makes specified monthly contributions towards Employee Provident Fund scheme in
accordance with the statutory provisions.

Gratuity
The Company operates a defined benefit gratuity plan for employees. The Company contributes to
a separate entity (a fund) towards meeting the Gratuity obligation.

The cost of providing defined benefits is determined using the Projected Unit Credit method with
actuarial valuations being carried out at each reporting date. The defined benefit obligations
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recognized in the Balance Sheet represent the present value of the defined benefit obligations as
reduced by the fair value of plan assets, if applicable. Any defined benefit asset (negative defined
benefit obligations resulting from this calculation) is recognized representing the present value of
available refunds and reductions in future contributions to the plan.

All expenses represented by current service cost, past service cost, if any, and net interest on the
defined benefit liability / (asset) are recognized in the statement of profit and loss.
Remeasurements of the net defined benefit liability/ (asset) comprising actuarial gains and losses
and the return on the plan assets (excluding amounts included in net interest on the net defined
benefit liability/asset), are recognized in Other Comprehensive Income. Such remeasurements are
not reclassified to the Statement of Profit and Loss in the subsequent periods.

The Company presents the above liability/(asset) as current and non-current in the Balance Sheet
as per actuarial valuation by the independent actuary.

p) Borrowing Cost:

a)

Borrowing cost includes interest, amortisation of ancillary costs incurred in connection with the
arrangement of borrowings and exchange differences arising from foreign currency borrowings to the
extent they are regarded as an adjustment to the interest cost.

Borrowing costs, if any, directly attributable to the acquisition, construction or production of an asset
that necessarily takes a substantial period of time to get ready for its intended use or sale are capitalized,
if any. All other borrowing costs are expensed in the period in which they occur.

Segment Reporting:

The Company has determined that it operates in a single business segment, namely “Manufacturing of
chemically specialize in liquid plastic products based on PVC such as PVC Plastisols, PVC Sealants, PVC
Underbody Coatings, PVC Organisols and PVC Protective Coatings.” As per IND AS-108 ‘Operating
Segments’, if a financial report contains both the consolidaled financial statements of a parent that is
within the scope of Ind AS-108 as well as the parent’s separate finanrial statements, fegmaent information
is required only in the consolidated financial statements. Accordingly, information required to be
presented under Ind AS-108 Operating Segments has been given in the consolidated financial statements.

Events after reporting date

Where events occurring after the Balance Sheet date provide evidence of conditions that existed at the
end of the reporting period, the impact of such events is adjusted within the Financial Statements.
Otherwise, events after the Balance Sheet date of material size or nature are only discloscd.

Non-current Assets held for sale

The Comnpany dassifies nun-cutienl dssels ds held fur sale If thelr carrylng amounts will be recovered
principally through a sale rather than through continuing use of the assets and actions required to
complete such sale indicate that it is unlikely that significant changes to the plan to sell will be made
of that the decision to sell will be withdrawn. Also, such assets are classified as held for sale only if the
management expects to complete the sale within ane year fram the date of classification,
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Non-current assets classified as held for sale are measured at the lower of their carrying amount and
the fair value less cost to sell. Non-current assets are not depreciated or amortised.

t) Earnings Per Share (EPS)

Basic Earnings Per Share is calculated by dividing the net profit attributable to the equity shareholders of
the Company with the weighted average number of equity shares outstanding during the financial year,
adjusted for treasury shares. Diluted Earnings Per Share is calculated by dividing net profit attributable to
the equity shareholders of the Company with the weighted average number of shares outstanding during
the financial year, adjusted for the effects of all dilutive potential equity shares.
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Phiroze Sothna Private Limited
CIN U25209MH1975PTC018396
Notes on Financial Statements for the year ended 31st March, 2023

As at 31/03/2023 As at 31/03/2022

Non-Current Investments
(Rs. In lakhs) (Rs. In lakhs)

{Long Term Investment In Shares})
UNQUOTED (at Amortised Cost)

Investment In Subsidiaries

48,000 (48,000) Equity Shares of Gramos

Chemicals (India) Private Limited Face Value of 443 443
Rs.100 each fully paid up

(Constituting 100%(100%) of the said Company’s

paid up capital)

Investments In Equity Shares - Quoted

(at Fair Value through Profit or Loss)

5,425 (7,250 ) Equity Shares of HDFC Limited of 142,53 173.18
Rs.2/- each fully paid up

2,850 (3,800 ) Equity Shares Tata Consultancy
Services Limited of Re. 1/~ each fully paid up 9431, 205

Total 238.33 319.68
Market value of Quoted Investments 233.90 315.26
Aggregate amount of Unquoted Investments 4.43 443
Other Financial Assets As at 31/03/2023 As at 31/03/2022
(Unsecured & considered good) (Rs. In lakhs) (Rs. In lakhs)
Other Deposits 249 263
Gratuity Deposit 57.80 52.44
Total 60.30 55.07
Deferred Tax As at 31/03/2023 As at 31/03/2022
(Rs. In lakhs) (Rs. In lakhs}
Property, Plant and Equipment (9.32) (10.74)
Fair Value of Investments 20.62 38.89
Expenses disallowed under Sec 43B 2.80 3.13
Minimum Alternate Tax 72,70 72.70
234 3.93

Provision for Doubtful Debts

Total 89.14 107.91
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Phiroze Sethna Private Limited
CIN U25209MH1975PTC018396
Notes on Financial

1ts for the year ended 31st March, 2023

Income Tax Assets (net)

Income Tax (Net of Provisions)

Inventories
(At lower of cost & net realisable value)

Raw Material
Packing Material
Finished Goods

Current Investments
Investments In Mutual Funds - Quoted
(at Fair Value through Profit or Loss)

21,739.866(21,739.866) Units Kotak Standard
Multicap Fund-Growth

15,355.071(15,355.071) Units Mirae Asset India

Equity Fund Fund-Regular Growth

18,393.226(18,393.226) Units SBI Blue Chip Fund-

Regular Growth

Market value of Quoted Investments

Trade Receivables

a) Considered good - Secured

b) Considered good -Unsecured

¢) Trade receivables -Significant risk

d) Trade receivables -credit impaired
Less : Trade receivables -Significant risk

a For Related party transactions Refer Note 36

As at 31/03/2023

As at 31/03/2022

(Rs. In lakhs) (Rs. In fakhs)
20.56 12.33
Total 20.56 12.33

As at 31/03/2023

As at 31/03/2022

(Rs. In lakhs) (Rs, In lakhs
6.56 57.28
2,66 2.85
7.34 22.11
Total 16.57 82.25

As at 31/03/2023

As at 31/03/2022

(Rs. In lakhs) (Rs. In lakhs)
1153 11.30
11.77 11.89
11.36 11.06
Total 34.65 34.25
34.65 34.25

As at 31/03/2023

As at 31/03/2022

(Rs. In lakhs) (Rs. In lakhs)
134.87 642.60
8.41 14.12
14328 656.72
-8.41 -14.12
Total 134.87 642.60




Phiroze Sethna Private Limited
CIN U25209MH1975PTC018396
Notes on Financial $ for the year ended 31st March, 2023

10 Cash And Cash Equivalents

Balances with Bank
In Current Accounts
Cash on hand

Total

11 Other Bank Balances

Margin money (Including deposits with orginal
maturity of more than 3 months)

1otai

12 Loany
{Unsecured & considered good)

Loans & advance to employees
Loans and advances to Related parties

Total

13 Current Tax Assets (Net)

Income Tax

Total

14 Other Cunieni Assuls

Gst Receivable (net)
Interest Accrued
Prepaid expenses
Gratuity Deposit
Total

@ |
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As at 31/03/2023 As at 31/03/2022

(Rs. In lakhs) (Rs. In lakhs)
20.87 8.32
0.05 0.07
20.92 8.39

As at 31/03/2023 As at 31/03/2022

(Rs. In lakhs) (Rs. In lakhs}
5.00 2375
LO00 83,75

Kb dl 3 1USI2U2S AS UL 3 US2U22

(Rs. In lakhs) (Rs. In lakhs)
76?00
76.00 %
As at 31/03/2023  As at 31/03/2022
{Rs. In lakhs) (Rs. In lakhs)
(6.74) (8.15)
(6.74) (8.15)

As at 310312023 As at 31/03/2022

(Rs. In lakhs) (Rs. In lakhs)
447 0,00
0.01 0.32
0.84 1.56
5.77 6.46
11.09 8.34




Phiraze Scthna Private Limited
CIN U23209MH I9T8PTC U 18380
Notes on Financial Statements for the year ended 31st March, 2023

15 Non Current Assets Held for sale As at 31/03/2023 As at 31/03/2022
(Rs. In lakhs) {Re. In lakhg)
Hold tor kalo Y]
64.57 -
16 Share Capltal As at 31/nN3/2073 a¢ ot 31NN
{Rs. In lakhs} (Rs. In lakhs)
Authorisod
{8,000) Eyulty Shares of Ks.1UU/- each 5.00 5.00
(4,950) Unclassified $hares of Rs.100/- each 495 495
(9.50% )Cumulative Redeemable Preference Shares of Rs. 100/-
each nns 0.05
Total 10.00 10.00

Issued, Subscribed and Paid up
4,000 Equity Shares of 4.00 4.00
Rs.100/- each fully paid up

(All the 4,000 Equity Shares are held by
Chembond Chemiclas Ltd, the holding Company)

Total 4.00 4.00
a Details of Shareholders holding more than 5% Shares
As at 31/03/2023 As al 31/03/2022
Name of the Shareholder No of Shares No of Shares
Chembond Chemicals Limited & its nominees 4,000 4,000
100%

Shareholding of Chembond Chemicals Limited includes 6 shares held by individuals as nominees of the Company.

Reconciliation of the equity shares outstanding at the beginning and at the end of

b reporting year
As at 31/02/2023 As at 31/03/2022
No of Shares No of Shares
Number of Share outstanding at the beginning of the year 4,000 4,000
Additions during the year
Deduction during the year = &
Number of Share outstanding at the end of the year 4,000 4,000

G Terms/Rights attached to Equity Shares
The Company has only one class of Equity Shares having a par value of Rs. 100/- per share. Each holder of equity shares is entitled to
one vote per share.

In the event of liquidation of the Company, the holders of Equity Shares will be entitled to receive remaining assets of the Company, after
distribution of all preferential amounts. The distribution will be in proportion to the number of equity shares held by the shareholders.

d Details of shareholding of Promoters

Disclosure of shareholding of promoters as at March 31, 2023 is-as follows:

Shares held by promoters at the end of the year

No of % change during
S.No Promoter Name shares™ % of Total ** the year™*
1 Ghemband Gheminals | imited 3904 Qn RS
2 Sameer V. Shah Jtly Shilpa S. Shah* 1 0.025
3 Nirmal ¥/ Shah My Mamta M. Shah* 1 0.026
4 Mamta N. Shah Jtly Nirmal V. Shah* 1 0.025
5 Shilpa S. Shah Jtly Sameer V. Shah* 1 0.025
6 Finor Piplaj Chemicals Limited* 1 0.025
7 Padma V. Shah* 1 0.025

*'Shareholding of Chembond Chemicals Limited includes 6 shares heid by individuals as nominees of the Company.

Disclosure of shareholding of promoters as at March 31, 2022 is as follows:

Shares held by promoters at the end of the year

No of % change during
S.No Promoter Name shares*™ % of Total ** the year*™
1 Chembond Chemicals Limited 3994 99.85
2 Sameer V. Shah Jtly Shilpa S. Shah* 1 0.025
3 Nirmal V. Shah Jtly Mamta N. Shah* 1 0.025
4 Mamta N, Shah Jtly Nirmal V. Shah* 1 0.025
5 Shilpa S. Shah Jtly Sameer V. Shah* 1 0.025
6 Finor Piplaj Chemicals Limited* 1 0.025
7 Padma V. Shah* 1 0.025

"Shareholding of Chembond Chemicals Lirited inclu gras held by individuals as nominees of the Company,




Phiroze Sethna Private Limited
CIN U25209MH1975PTC018396
Notes on Financial S

1ts for the year ended 31st March, 2023

17 Other Equity As at 31/03/2023 As at 31/03/2022
(Rs. In lakhs) (Rs. In lakhs)
Capital Redemption Reserve
Opening Balance 0.05 0.05
Closing Balance 0.05 0.05
General Reserve
As per last year 514.40 514.40
Add:Trancfor from Profit & Loss Ao - %
w1440 h14 41
Retained Earnings
Ao pu luol gew 200.0% Jyu.us
Add: Profit for the Year (334.48) (318.29)
Add: Excess Provision related to Previous years written back - -
(53.78) 278.35
Less: Appropriations
Transferred to General Reserve = -
Other Comprehensive Income 6.83 2.34
Tax Elfect un Olhe Cotnprehiensive incorme N o
Interim Nividend . .
et off of Nividend Tax in respect of Dividend from Zubcidiany Company
Tax on Interim Dividend = =
(46.95) 280.69
Total 467.50 795.14
18 Borrowings As at 31/03/2023 As at 31/03/2022
{Rs. In lakhs) (Rs. In lakhs)
Unsecured
Loan Received From Chembond Chemicals Lid 90.00 90.00
Total 90.00 90.00
18 Trade Payables As at 31/03/2023 As at 31/03/2022
(Rs. In lakhs) (Rs. In lakhs)
Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises 17.64 64,02
Others 109.08 345.60
Total 126.72 409.62
a For Kelated parly transaction Reter Note No.38

b The Company has amounts due to suppllers under the Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises Development Act, 2UU6 {MSMED Agt) as at
the year end. The disclosure pursuant to the said Act is as under:.

As at 31/03/2023

As at 31/03/2022

(Rs. In lakhs) (Rs. In lakhs)
Principal amount due to suppliers under MSMED Act, 2006 17.64 64.02
0.06 0.52

Interest accrued and due to suppliers under MSMED Act, 2006 on the above amount

Payment made to suppliers (other than interest) beyond the appointed day, during the =

year

Interest paid/adjusted to suppliers under MSMED Act, 2006 (other than section 16)

Interest paid/adjusted to suppliers under MSMED Act, 2006 (Section 16)

Interest due and payable to suppliers under MSMED Act, 2006 for payments already

made

Interest accrued and remaining unpaid at the end of the year to suppliers under MSMED -

Act, 2006

The information regarding Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises has been determined to
the extent such parties have been identified on the basis of information available with the
Company. This has been relied upon by the Auditors
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Phiroze Sethna Private Limited
CIN U25209MH1975PTC018396

Notes on Financial § ts for the year ended 31st March, 2023
20 Other Current Liabilities As at 31/03/2023 As at 31/03/2022
{Rs. In lakhs) (Rs. In lakhs)
Statutory Dues 2.05 4411
Other payable 23.01 42.89
Total 25.06 87.00
21 Provisions (Current} As at 31/03/2023 As at 31/03/2022
(Rs. In lakhs} (Rs. In lakhs)
Provision for Employees Benefits 85.77 22.78
Total 85.77 22.78
22 Revenue From Operations 2022-23 2021-22
(Rs. In lakhs) (Rs. In lakhs)
Sales 441.64 2,278.35
Other Operating revenue
Miscellaneous Income 0.01 2.25
Net Sales Total 441.64 2,280.60
23 Other Income 2022-23 2021-22
(Rs. In lakhs) (Rs. In lakhs)
Dividend from Equity Investments 6.50 3.03
Dividend from Mutual Funds - -
6.50 3.03
Net gain on Saleffair valuation of investments through profit & loss * - 24,98
Gross Interest from Bank {TDS Rs. 0.06 lakhs (Rs. 0.06 lakhs)} 0.89 1.05
Net Gain on Sale of Fixed Assets 0.62 -
Mangement Concultancy fees Received {TDS Rs.5.72 57.24 57.24
lakhs(Rs.5.72 lakhs)}
Miscellaneous Income 1.29 0.64
Insurance Proceeds - 0.79
Gross Interest from Intercompany Deposit {TDS Rs.0.03lakhs (P.Y Nil lakhs)} 0.30 -
Rent Received{TDS Rs.Nil lakhs (Rs.0.13 lakhs)} - 1.28
Discount Allowed 0.53 10.82
Total 67.37 99.83
For Related party transaction Refer Note No.36
24 Cost Of Materials Consumed 2022-23 2021-22
(Rs. In lakhs) (Rs. In lakhs)
Raw Material Consumed
Purchases 387.90 1,895.30
Packing Material Consumed 27.49 164.75
Total 415.39 2,060.05
25 -7 021-22
Changes In Inventory Of Finished Goods, Work Aaeeigs
In Pro And Traded Good:
gress - (Rs. In lakhs) (Rs. In lakhs)
a) Finished products/ Stock in Trade (At Close)
Finished products 4.99 13.49
Semifinished products 0.09 8.59
Trading goods - 0.03
Stock in Transit 227 -
b) Finished products/ Stock in Trade (At commencement}
Finished products 13.49 21.57
Semifinished products 8.59 34 47
Trading goods 0.03 0.04
Stock in Transit 0.00 0,04
Total 14,77 34.01
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Employee Benefit Expenses

Salaries & Wages
Contribution to Provident & other funds
Staff Welfare Expenses
Total

For Related party transaction Refer Note No.36

oo

Details of actuarial Valuation are as follows:

Particulars

Opening defined benefit obligation

Gurrent anrviae cont

Intorost on dofined bonofit obligation

{Benefits naid)

Actuarlal loss / {galn) arlsing trom change in financial
assumplions

Acluenial luss / {uain) arising iuni iatives in deinow aulil
asaumipliuns

Actuarial loss / (gain) arising on account of exprience changes

Llosing aanineqa benetit obligation

The Company’s obligation towards the Gratuity Fund is a Defined Benefit Plan.

2022-23 2021-22
(Rs. In lakhs) (Rs. In lakhs)
236.17 366.88
22.50 27.68
13.43 16.67
27209 41123
2022-23 2021-22
(Rs. In lakhs) {Rs. In lakhs)
67.86 108.90
0.17 7%
477 742
(5 74) (49 8R)
{8.29) (6.34)
65.21 67.86

Changes in the fair value of assets in case of Gratuity representing reconciliation of opening and closing balances thereof:

Opening fair value of plan assets

Employer contributions

Interest on plan asets

Actual return on plan assets less interest on plan assets

Benefit paid
Closing fair value of plan assets

Acturial assumption:
Discount rate
Salary escalation

Profit & Loss Account Expense

Current service cost

Interest on net defined benefit liability / (assets)
{Gains) / losses on settlement

Closing fair value of plan assets

Reconcilation of Net Liablity / Asset

QOpening net defined benefit liabilty / (asset)
Expense charged to profit & loss account
Amount recognized outside profit & loss account
Employer contributions

Closing fair value of plan assets

Sensitivity analysis

126.76

872
(1.46)

(5.24)
128.78

7.50%
7.00%

6.17
(4.01)

216

(58.90)
2.16
(6.83)

(63.56)

169.16
11.47
(4.00)

(49.88)
126.76

6.80%
7.00%

7.75
(4.05)

3.70
(60.26)

3.70
(2.34)

(58?90)

Reasonably possible changes at the reporting date to one of the relevant actuarial assumptions, holding other assumptions constant,
would have affected the defined benefit obligation by the amounts shown below.

As at 31st March, 2023 As at 31st March, 2022 ]
Increase Decrease Increase Decrease
Discount rate (1% movement) - Gratuity (8.00) 8.90 (8.80) 10.00
Future salary grovdh (1% movement) - Graluity 8.90 (8.10) 9.80 (8.80)

The above sensitivity analyses have been calculated to show the movement in dafined benefit obllgation in Isolation and assuming
there are no other changes in market conditions at the reporting date. In practice, generally it does not occur. When we change one
variable, it affects to others. In calculating the sensitivity, project unit credit method at the end of the reporting period has been applied.

Expected future cash flows

For year ended

The Mznagement has relied on the overall actuarial valuation conducted by the acluary. However experience ad

The ted maturity analysis is as follows : For year ended
31.3.2023 31.3.2022
| Expected bensfits for year 1 0.94 0.90
|Expecled benefits for year 1.04 8
Expected benefits for year 1.15 0
Expacted benefits for year 4 1.26 I
Expected benefits for year 5 5.47 1.30
IExSecled benefils for year 6 and above 59.65 BZ.44

ustments on plan

liabilities and assets are not readily available and hence not disciosed. The expected return on plan assets is as furnished by the

Actuary appointed by the Company.
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Notes on Financial $ ts for the year ended 31st March, 2023
Finance Cost 2022-23 2021-22
{Rs. In lakhs) (Rs. In lakhs)
Interest kxpense
- Banks = 5.51
- MSMF 0,06 052
Ollivis Hh /1Y
Total 8.22 13.82
Depreciation And Amortisation Expenses 2022-23 2021-22
{Rs. In lakhs) (Rs. In lakhs)
Depreciation and Amortisation Expenses 6.22 9.03
Total 6.22 9.03
Other Expenses 2022-23 2021-22
(Rs. In lakhs} (Rs. In lakhs}
Manufacturing Expenses
Power, Fuel & Water Chargos 3.45 6.32
Godown Rent 8.33 14,71
Labour Charges 5.66 38.40
Factory Maintenance 13.35 15.08
A 30.79 74.48
Administrative Expenses
Director's Sitting Fees 0.30 0.31
Rates & Taxes 4.62 0.87
Efectricity charges 1.71 1.45
Printing and stationary 0.13 098
Telephone & Postage Expenses 1.51 2.37
Insurance 2.98 3.20
Motor car expenses 3.48 209
Auditors Remuneration 368 3.66
Legal, Professionai & consultancy fees 7.92 3.38
Repairs & Maintenance Others 5.36 4.75
Carriage& Freight 4.06 11.39
Miscellaneous expenses 4.01 7.57
Loss on Sale of Fixed Assets - 0.09
Foreign Exchange Fluctuation Loss - 247
Fair value of Investments 454 -
Reimbursement of expenses 2517 30.00
Input GST Disallowed 0.04 0.01
Provision for Doubtful Debts -5.71 -6.68
Debit Balance Written Off - 1.55
Bad Debts Written Off 1.01 1.33
B 64.83 70.79
Selling And Distribution Expenses
Rent - 0.01
Travelling Expenses 7.81 8.69
Conveyance expenses 4.61 9.50
c 12.42 18.20
(A+B+C) 108.03 163.48
a Auditor's Remuneration consists of: 2022-23 2021-22
(Rs_In lakhs) (Rs. In lakhs)
Statutory Audit Fees 3.04 213
Tax Audit Fees - 0.91
Taratiw and Olhet Mallers 0.64 0.61
Total 3.68 3.66
h For Ralated party transaction Rafar Natn Mn 4k
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Notes on Financial Statements for the year ended 31st March, 2023

30 Earnings Per Share

Net Profit available to Equity Shareholders (Rs. In Lakhs)

Total number of Equity Shares (Face value of Rs. 100/- each fully paid up)
Weighted No. of Equity Shares

Basic Earnings per Share (in Rupees)

Diluted No. of Equity Shares

Diluted Eamings per Share (in Rupees)

31 Value Of Imports Calculated On CIF Basis

Raw Materials and Finished Goods

2022-23 2021-22
(334.48) {318.29)
4,000 4,000
4,000 4,000
(8,362.01) (7.957.21)
4,000 4,000
(8,362.01) (7,857.21)
2022-23 2021-22
(Rs. In lakhs) (Rs. In lakhs)
- 49.29




32 Ageing Schedule for Trade Payables

Apelng fow trady Payablu outstanding as on 315t Mar'23 g 2 followe ;

Amount (Rs.in lakhs)

Rarticulars Outstanding for following periods from due data of payments#

Not Due Less than 1yr |1-2 Yrs 2-3Yrs More than 3 Yrs Total
i) MSME 7.06 10.58 17.64
1) Others 77.33 28.37 0.60 0.95 1.82 109.08
1) Nisputed dues - MSMEC
IV} Disputed dues - Others -

Actiued eapelises

Net trade payables 126.72
Ageing for trade Payables outstanding as on 31st Mar'22 is as follows :
Amount (Rs.in lakhs)
Particulars Outstanding for following periods from due date of payments#
Not Due Less than 1yr |1-2 Yrs 2-3Yrs More than 3 Yrs Total

1) MSME 18.64 45.38 64.02
11) Others 106.57 275.02 (36.76) (0.34) 1.11 345.60
111} Disputed dues - MSME =
1V) Disputed dues - Others
Accrued expenses

409.62

Net trade payables

33 Ageing Schedule for Trade receivables
Ageing for trade receivables outstanding as on 31st Mar'23 is as follows :

Amount (Rs.in lakhs)

Particulars Outstanding for following periods from due date of payments#
Less than 6 6 months- More than
Not Due months 1year 1-2 years 2-3 years 3 years Total

1) Undisputed trade
receivables — considered
goods 132.36 5.50 (3.88) -3.23 0.41 12.12 143.28
i} Undisputed trade
receivables - which have
significant increase in credit
risk

iii) undisputed trade
reccivnhlmy creclit ivpninol

iv) Disputed trade receivables -
considered good

v) Disputed trade receivables -
which have significant
increase in credit risk

vi) Disputed trade receivables -
credit impaired
Less : Allowance for doubtful trade receivables
Trade receivables

5 CHARTERED
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Ageing for trade receivables outstanding as on 31st Mar'22 is as follows :

Amount (Rs.in lakhs)

Particulars Outstanding for following periods from due date of payments#
Less than 6 6 months- More than
Not Due months 1 year 1-2 years 2-3 years 3 years Total

1) Undisputed trade
receivables — considered
goods 617.93 28.26 -4.54 2.68 12.90 -0.5074 656.72
ii) Undisputed trade
receivables - which have
significant increasce in credit
risk

jii) undisputed trade
recelvables - credit Impalred =

iv) Disputed trade receivables -
considered good ) |

v} Disputed trade receivables -
which have significant
increase in credit risk

vi) Disputed trade receivables
credit impaired
Less : Allowance for doubtful trade receivables 14,12
Trade receivables 642.60

34 ADDITIONAL REGULATORY INFORMATION REQUIRED BY SCHEDULE IIl TO THE COMPANIES ACT, 2013
I The Cumpany does not have any benaml property held in its name. No proceedings have been Inititated on or are
pending against the Company for holding benami propertyunder the Benami Transactions(Prohibition) Act,1988
(45 of 1988) and Rules made thereunder.

i The Company has not been declared wilful defaulter by any bank or financial institution or other lender or government or any government

i The Company has complied with the requirement with respect to number of layers as prescribed under
Section 2(87) of the Companies Act, 2013 read with the Companies (Restriction on number of layers) Rules, 2017.

iv Utilisation of borrowed funds and share premium

I The Company has not advanced or loaned or invested funds to any other person(s) or entity(ies), including

foreign entities (Intermediaries) with the understanding that the Intermediary shali :

(a) Directly or indirectly lend or invest in other persons or entities identified in any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the Company
(b) Provide any guarantee, security or the like to or on behalf of the ultimate beneficiaries

I1 The Company has not received any fund from any person(s) or entity(ies), including foreign entities (Funding Party)

with the understanding (whether recorded in writing or otherwise) that the Company shall :

(a) directly ar indirectly lend or invast in other persons or entities idontified in any manner whatsoever hy or on hehalf of the Tunding Party
(b} provide any guarantee, security or the like on behalt of the ultimate beneticiaries

v There is no income surrendered or disclosed as income during the year in tax assessments under the Income Tax
Acl, 1981 {such as search or survey), that has hot been racorded in the books ot account.

vi The Company has not traded or invested in crypto currency or virtual currency during the year.

vii The Company does not have any charges or satisfaction of charges which is yet to be registered with Registrar of Companies beyon,c,i,xheﬂ-x\
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35 Disclosure of Ratios :

Amount (Rs.in lakhs)
Ratios As at March | As at March
31/03/2023 | 31/03/2022

a Current Ratio
= Current Assets/Current Liabilities 1.13 1.33
b Debt Equity Ratio
= (Short Term Debt+long Term
Debt+Other Fixed Payments)/ 0.19 0.11

Shareholder's Equity

C Debt Service Coverage Ratio 5.82 26.70
= Net Operating Income/ Debt Service

d Return on Equity Ratio
= Net income/ Shareholders Equity (0.67) (0.39)
e Inventory Turnover Ratio
= Cost of Goods Sold/ A ] t
ost of Goods Sold/ Average Inventory e 13.83
f Trade Receivables Turnover Ratio
= Net Credit sales/ Average Accounts 4.62 4.42
g Trade Payable Turnover Ratio
= Credit Purch A A
redit Purchases/ Average Accounts 297 545
Payable
h Net Capital Turnover Ratio
= Net Sales/ Working Capital 10.31 11.50
i Net Profit Ratio
= Net Profit/ Net Sales (0.76) (0.14)
i Return on Capital Employed
= Earnings Before Interest and Tax/ (76.87) (74.34)
k Return on Investment
= Net Return on Investment/ Cost of 0.00 {0.13)
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Phiroze Sethna Private Limited

Note 36:
Related Party Disclosures, as required by Ind AS 24, "Relates Party Disclosures”, are given below :

a) Relationship:
i. Holding Company :
Chembond Chemicals Limited

ii.Subsidiary Company :
Gramos Chemicals India Private Limited

iii. Associate and Fellow Subsidiary Companies :
Chembond Material Technologies Private Limited
Chembond Biosciences Limited

Chembond Polymers and Materials Limited
Chembond Water Technologies Limited

Chembond Calvatis Industrial Hygiene Systems Limited
Chembond Distribution Limited

iv. Key Management Personnel and their relatives (KMP}
Key Management Personnel :

Mr.Sameer V Shah

Mr.Nirmal v Shah

Mrs.Rashmi Gavli

Mr.Mahendra Ghelani

Mr.Sharad Wagle

Mr.Aspi Godrej

Mrs Parviz Batliwala

Relatives :

Padma V Shoh, Dr.Shilpa 5. Shah,Naunag Shah,Amrita 5 Shaly,Shashank (Anuite Husband), Malika 3 Slialy, kainla N, Shal, Alpana 3, ShaliJyull Webita, Kalill Shal,Kshitlja Shah, Sameer
L. Gavli,Sunita L. Gavli,Rati M. Tipnis,Nupur S. Gavli, Tushar M. Tipnis,Yogita Tushar Tipnis,Prashant L. Gavli,Pallavi S. Wakaskar,Mina Ghelani,Kalyanji Ghelani,Kanta Ghelani,Jayant /
Madhusudan,Rekha / Sudha,

Entities over which Key Mangement Personnel are able to exercise influence :
Balu Investments Services Private Limited

Bullows India Private Limited

CCL Opto Electronics Private Limited

Finor Piplaj Chemicals Limited

S and N Venturs Private Limited

Visan Holdings and Financial Services Private Limited

Oriano Clean Energy Private Limited

Chembond Clean Water Technolgies Limited

The following transactions were carried out with related parties in the ordinary course of business :
Rs in Lakhs

For the year ended as on 31.03.2023 31.03.2022
Associates/
Fellow Assaciates/Fell

Description of the nature of transactions Holding bsidiary Subsidiary KMP Holding b y | ow Y KMP
Sale of Goods
Chembond Chemicals Limited 0.03 15,23
Gramos Chemicals India Private Limited 194 0.62
Chembond Material Technologies Pvt Ltd 338.81 2,054.23

Sales Of Fixed Assets
Chembaond Chemicals Limited 2.09 0.04
Chembeond Material Technologies Pvt Ltd 0,24
Gramos Chemicals India Private Limited 12.61 8.67
Chembond Bioscience Ltd 0.50 0,02
Finor Piplaj Chemicals Ltd 0.02

Sales Of Consumbales
Chembond Chemicals Limited 0.22
Gramos Chemicals India Private Limited 0.39
Chembond Bioscience Ltd 0.55

055

Reimbursement Income

Chembond Material Technologies Pvt Ltd 1.05
Managment Fees Received
Gramas Chemicals India Private Limited 57.24 57.24

Rent Received

Chembond Material Technologies Pvt Ltd 128

Rent Paid
Chemband Chemicals Limited 011
Gramas Chemicals India Private Limited 6.60 1332
Telephone Expenses
Chembond Chemicals Limited 03s 029
Chembond Material Technologies Pvt Ltd 0.29 0.18

Chargeout Expenses
Chembaond Material Technologies Pvt Ltd

e —HERGy
Comuter Expenses %?;{5—‘ U R }!

Chembond Chemicals Limitad 0.30 v




Phireze Sethna Private Limited

Note 36: (continued)

Related Party Disclosures, as required by Ind AS 24, "Relates Party Disclosures", are given below :

Rs in Lakhs

For the year ended as on

31.03.2023

31.03.2022

Associates/
Fellow

Holding | Subsidiary bsidiary KMP

Holding

Assoctates/lell

ow ¥

KMP

Description of the pature of transactions

Reimbursement Expense

Chembond Chemicals Limited

Gramos Chemicals India Private Limited
Chemband Material Technologies Pvt Ltd

Salary Cost Relmbursement Fxpense
Chemband Chemicals Limited
Chembuand Material Technalogies Pvt Ltd

[Purchasc of Goods

Chembond Chemicals Limited

Gramos Chemicals India Private Limited
Chembond Material Technologies Pvt Ltd
Chemband Bioscience Ltd

Interest Expense
Chembond Chemicals Limited

Interest income
Gramos Chemicals India Private Limited

Loan Taken
Chembond Chemicals Limited

Lean Given
Gramias Chemicals India Private Limited

Balance at the end of the year

A.Trade Receivables

Chembond Chemicals Limited

Gramos Chemicals India Private Limited
Chembond Material Technologies Pvt Ltd
Chembond Bioscience Ltd

Finor Piplaj Chemicals Ltd

B.Trade Payables

Chembond Chemicals Limited

Gramos Chemicals India Private Limited
Chemband Material Technologies Pvt Ltd
Chembond Bioscience Ltd

C.Directors Sitting Fees
Mr.Mahendra Ghelani
Mrs Parviz Batliwala

D.Directors Conaultancy
Mr.S.K.Wagle
Mr.A.P.Godrej

L7s

0.28

12.67
102.83

011
89.55

8.10

0.30

90.00

76.00

30.35

91.20
124

70.76

0.02

830

4.00
3.57

1584

ne

85.69

7.79

90.00

103.92

147

252

45.48

0.17

89.38
0.08

440.25

0.10

031

7.50
7.25
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37 Financial instruments - Fair values and risk management
A, Accounting classification and fair values

The following table shows the carrying amounts and fair values of financial assets and financial liabilities, including their levels in the fair value hierarchy. It does not include fair value information for financial
assets and financial liabilities not measured at fair value if the carrying amount is 2 reasonable approximation of fair value,

Bs it Lakhs
As at 31 March 2093
Carrying amount Falr value
Fair value theaigh | Fair value throujh Amortized Cost Total Lewel 1 Level 2 Leunl 3 Total
profit and loss |ather t '
income
Financial assets
Cash and cash equivalents {Including other 2592 2592 -
bank balances}
Investments
- Mutual Funds 34,65 34.65 34,65 34.65
- Equity Shares {Quoted) 233.90 233,90 233.90 733 5n
- kquity Shares {Unquoted} 443 443
Trade and other receivables 134.87 13487 -
InAns Tr nn aron
uther financial assets B3y 60.30 =)
ToTAL 26855 - 30353 s7007 26855 . - 26655
Flitais Ll fhalitifehes
Luitg Letin Luniuwiigs {nuluding canent -
matwrity of Lona term borrowines|
Short term borrowings 90,00 90.00
Trads and other payables 17.64 17.64 =
Other financial liabilities + - .
Aldiug - - 16764 107 64 - - - -
Re.in Lakihe
As at 31 March 2022
Larrying amaunt Falr vitlun
Fail VdIUY WIHBUEH

Fair value through [ethes comprehensive

profit and bess income Amotized Cost Total el 1 Lol 2 Levei3 Total
FilldHUd] dssuts
Cusliund wusli qulvslents {ncladhig ulhed 3214 3214 .
bank balances)
Investrments
- Mutual Funds 3425 34.25 34.25 34.25 .
« Equity Shares {Quoted) 31525 315.25 315,25 315.25
- Equity Shares {Unguoted) 443 443 =
Trade and other receivables 642,60 642.60 -
Loans . .
Other financial assets 5507 __&sa7
TOTAL 349,50 734.24 1,083 74 349,50 = - 349,50
Financial liabilities
Long term borrowings (Including current . -
Short term borrowings 90,00 9000 -
Trade and other payables 64.02 64.02 =
Other financial liabilities - = .
TOTAL . = 13402 15502 = ' . =

Fair values for financial instruments carried at amortised cost approximates the carrying amount, accordingly the fair values of such financial assets and financial liabilities have not been disclosed separately.

8, Measurament of fair values

T AT TOT Tloombes Il WosUnnornn < TS RIS 4818 1 IASAIIATIDE THE TS U040 FHQTIHR 1 )0 SHPLIHLAPIMBRTE MA3EUPAA 3T 1IF 3ILA It the Balanoo Lhoot, using o three level tair value hicrorchy fwhich
reflects the significance of inputs used in the measurements). The hierarchy gives the highest priority to un-adjusted quated prices in active markets for identical assets or liabilities {Level 1 measurements} and
lowest priority to un-observable inputs {Level 3 measurements). Fair value of derivative financial assets and liabilities are estimated by discounting expected future contractual cash flows using prevailing market
interest rate curves. The three levels of the fair-value-hierarchy under Ind AS 107 are described below:

Level 1: Heirarchy includes financial instruments measured using quoted prices,

Level 2: The fair value of financial instruments that are not traded in an active market are determined using valuation techniques which maximise the use of observable market data and rely as little as possible
on entity specific estimates, If all significant inputs required to fair value an instrument are observable, the instrument is included in level 2
Level 3: If one or more of the significant inputs are not based on observable market data, the instrument is included in level 3, e.g. unlisted equity securities

Transfars batwean Levels
There are no transfers betweeen the levels

€. Financial risk management
The Company's activities expose it to Credit risk, liquidity risk and market risk,

1. Risk management framework

Risk Management is an integral part of the Companv s plans and operations, The Company’s board of directors has overall responsibility for the establishment and aversight of the Company risk management
framewaork. The board of directors is r for and itoring the Company risk management policies.

The audit committee oversees how managemnent monitors compliance with the Company’s risk management policies and procedures, and reviews the ad of the risk -an kin refation
to the risks faced by the Company. The audit committee is assisted in its oversight role by internal audit. Internal audit undertakes both regular and ad hoc reviews of risk management controls and pracedures,

the results of which are reported to the audit committee,

ii. Credit risk
Credit risk is the risk of financial loss to the Company if a customer or counterparty to a financial instrument fails to meet its contractual obligations, and arises principally from the Company's receivables from
custorners and il in debt ities, cash and cash i mutual funds, bonds etc.

The carrying amount of financial assets represents the maximum credit exposure,
Trade and other receivables

Credit risk is the risk of possible default by the counter party resulting in a financial loss
The Company manages credit risk through various internal policies and procedures setiorth for aﬂe"nve cantrel over credit exposure. These are managed by way of setting various credit approvals,evaluation of
financial condition before supply terms, setting credit limits, industry trends, ageing anatys the i thiness of to which the Company grants credit terms in the

normal course of business, ” 1 | ”:
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Cash and cash equivalents
Credit risk from balances with banks is managed by the Campany’s treasury department in accordance with the Company's policy. Investment of surplus funds are made in mainly in mutual funds with good

returns and with high credit ratings assigned by International and domestic credit ratings agencies.

Other than trade and other receivables, the Company has no other financial assets that are past due but not impaired

Liquidity risk

Liquidity risk is the risk that the Company will not be able to meet its financial obligations as they become due. The Company manages its liquidity risk by ensuring, as far as possible, that it will always have
sufficient liquidity to meet its liabilities when due, under both normal and stressed conditions, without incurring unacceptable losses or risk to the Company’s reputation.

The Company has obtained fund and non-fund based working capital lines from various banks. The Company also canstantly monitors funding options available in the debt and capital markets with a view to
maintaining financial flexibility.

iv. Market risk

Market risk is the risk of loss of future earnings, fair values or future cash flows that may result from adverse changes in market rates and prices {such as interest rates, foreign currency exchange rates ). Market
risk is il to all market risk- itive financial i , all foreign currency receivables and payables and all short term and long-term debt. The Company is exposed to market risk primarily related
to foreign exchange rate risk, interest rate risk and the market value of its investments. Thus, the Company's exposure to market risk is a function of investing and borrowing activities and revenue generating
and operating activities in foreign currencies,

a) Currency risk
The Compnay is exposed to currency risk to the extent that there is a mismatch between the currencies in which sales, purchase, and other expenses are denominated and the functional currency of the

Company. The functional currency of the Company is Indian Rupees {INR}. The currencies in which these ions are primarily i are EURO and USD.

Exposure to currency risk
The summary quantitative data about the Company's exposure to currency risk as reported to the management of the Company is as follows:

#  The Company has entered into forward contracts to hedge the foreign currency risks arising from amounts designated in foreign currency. The counter party to such forward contract is a bank. Forward
contracts outstanding at the year end are:

Exposure to
Currency buy/seli As at 31/03/2023 As at 31/03/2022
Fatgign Currency Indian Currency Foreign Currency Indian Currency

uso By

b Foreign Currency Exposures at the year end not hedged by derivative instruments:

As at 31/03/2023 As at 31/03/2022
Forgign Currency Indian Currency Foreign Currency Indian Currency
US Dollars Buy 0.90 64.72 0.22 15.72
Us Dollars Sell 0.00 0.00 000 0.00

b) Interest rate risk

Interest rate risk is the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate because of changes in market interest rates il manages and reviews the
interest rate movernents in the market. This risk is mitigated by the Company by investing the funds in varioustenors depending on the liquidity needs of the Company, The Company's exposures to interest rate
risk is not significant,

Tax Reconciliation 2022-2023 2021-2022
{a) The income tax expense consists of the followings: R lakhs Rs. In lakhs
Particulars
Current Income Tax =
Deferred Tax Expense 1877 713
. [0.03]
Tax expense for the year 1877 7.10
{b} Reconciliation of tax expense and the accounting profit multiplied by India‘s tax Rate
Profit before income tax ekpense (32254} {313.53)
Indian statutory income tax rate (MAT} 16.69% 16.69%
Expected Income Tax expenses B -
PartA

Tax effect of amounts which are not deductible {allowable} in calculating taxable income:

Income exempt from income taxes - B
Additional allowances/deduction - -
Transition gain .

Short/excess - - 003
Others. = -

Current Tax (A) - = 0.03
PartB

Deferred Tax Effect at the rate of: 27.82% 27.82%

Depreciation
Investments at Fair Value

Less:
Depreciation 142 {0771
Investments at Falr Valus (1827} 4.86
Gratuity . -
MAT Credit = (10.05)
Other Deferred tax Asset (0.33) 0.69
Provision for Doubtful Debts (159} (1.86)

Deferred Tax {8) 1877 7.13

Tax Expense (A+B) 7.10

During the year under consideration the Company has sold / transferred a substantial portion of its Fixed Assets including Machinery & Equipment to its 100% Subsidiary Gramos Chemicals Private Limited, The
management is of the view that this will not affect the operations of the Company including its Going Concern as the subsidiary will Toll Manufacture various preducts for the Company.

The previous year figures have been regrouped, r or i wherever necessary to conform to current year classification and presentation

As per our attached report of even date

For M/s Kagtury & Talati ©On behalf of the Board of Directors
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Partner : Director Director

Membership No. F/41867 Din: 00105721 Din: 08001649

Place : Mumbai Place : Mumbai Place ; Mumbai

Date : 13th May 2023 Date : 13th May 2023 Date : 13th May 2023
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